
 
 

APRIL 5, 2017 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

3:30 P.M. Closed Session; 4:30 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

 

 MAYOR Sam Abed 

 DEPUTY MAYOR John Masson 

 COUNCIL MEMBERS Olga Diaz 
  Ed Gallo 
  Michael Morasco 

 INTERIM CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 

 CITY CLERK Diane Halverson 

 INTERIM CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 

 DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Bill Martin 

 DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   
 
The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   
 
The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers.  
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   
 
The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 



 

April 5, 2017 
3:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 
is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 

prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 

instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION:  (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 

b. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 
Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: 

Administrative/Clerical/Engineering (ACE) Bargaining Unit 
c. Agency Negotiator:  Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 

Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: Supervisory (SUP) 
Bargaining Unit 

II. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name:   Southwest Key Programs, Inc. v. City of Escondido 
Case No:   '15-CV-1115-H (BLM) 

III. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 
a. Property:   APNs 238-073-06, -17, -038, -49, -50, -51, -52, -57 

City Negotiator:  Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager 
Negotiating Parties:  Terry Jackson 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Agreement 



b. Property:  Municipal Parking Lot #1, Municipal Parking Lot #2, and APNs 233-
   091-01 through -17 
City Negotiator: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Touchstone Communities 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

IV. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT AND EVALUATION (Government Code 54957) 

a. City Manager  
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

April 5, 2017 
4:30 P.M. Meeting 

 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

 
 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION:  
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

 
FLAG SALUTE   

 
ROLL CALL:  Diaz, Gallo, Masson, Morasco, Abed 

 

PROCLAMATIONS: Earth Day and Earth Awareness Month 
 

PRESENTATIONS: Earth Day Poster Contest Award Presentation  
 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 

refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 

will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting.   



CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 

or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY/RRB) 
2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency ) 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A) Regular Meeting of March 15, 2017  B) Regular Meeting of 
March 22, 2017 

4. FISCAL YEAR 2016 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM GRANT ACCEPTANCE 

AND BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve accepting $121,095 in funding from the Department of Homeland 

Security for the FY16 State Homeland Security Grant Program; authorize the Fire Chief to execute, on 

behalf of the City, all documents required for the management of this grant; and approve the necessary 
budget adjustment to establish new projects for tracking of these grant funds.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Fire Department: Russ Knowles) 

5. SENIOR NUTRITION BUDGET ADJUSTMENT  

Request the City Council approve a budget adjustment of $6,258, resulting from one-time only funds 
provided by the County of San Diego for the Senior Nutrition Program and authorize the Interim City 

Manager and Director of Administrative Services to make the necessary budget adjustments to the 
Senior Nutrition budget.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Services Department: Loretta McKinney) 

6. EXTENSION OF TIME FOR TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP 895 (SUB 15-0030) - 

Request the City Council approve a three-year extension of time for an eight-lot single-family residential 
Tentative Subdivision Map, originally approved as Tract 895, located at 1537 Boyle Avenue.  

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-40 

7. CITY OF ESCONDIDO LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT - PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S 

REPORT FOR ZONES 1 THROUGH 38 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 - 

Request the City Council approve initiating the proceedings for the annual levy of assessments for the 
City of Escondido Landscape Maintenance Assessment District for Zones 1 through 38 for Fiscal Year 

2017/2018; approve the preliminary Engineer's Report for LMD Zones 1 through 38; and set a public 
hearing date of May 3, 2017, for LMD Zones 1 through 38. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Ed Domingue) 

A) RESOLUTION NO. 2017-45  B) RESOLUTION NO. 2017-46 

8. ADOPTION OF A NEW DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY AS REQUIRED FOR STATE APPROVAL 

OF THE WASTEWATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOANS - 

Request the City Council approve establishing a Debt Management Policy for the City of Escondido. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Sheryl Bennett) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-47 



9. SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ESCONDIDO EDUCATION COMPACT 

AT 220 SOUTH BROADWAY - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute 

a Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement with Escondido Education COMPACT at 220 South 
Broadway. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-50 

10. CONTINUING EMERGENCY AND NEED TO REPAIR THE SEWER PIPELINE IN GREEN TREE 

MOBILE HOME ESTATES - 

Request the City Council approve declaring that pursuant to the terms of Section 22050 of the California 
Public Contract Code, the City Council finds there is a need to continue the emergency action and pass 

a resolution by four-fifths vote declaring that public interest and necessity demand the expenditure to 
safeguard life, health, and property. 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-51 

 

CONSENT – RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of 

Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

11. CITY COUNCIL RESPONSE TO AB 805 - 

AB 805 would amend various provisions in the California Public Utilities Code to, among other things, 

require changes to the agency voting weight and membership of the SANDAG board members and 
would require changes to the board representation and voting weight of MTS and NCTD member 

agencies. 

Staff Recommendation: None (Mayor Abed and Deputy Mayor Masson) 

12. CITY COUNCIL RESPONSE TO SB 54 - 
SB 54 would add several provisions to current state law relating to the Standards for Cooperation in 

United States Immigration and Customs Enforcement Programs including restrictions on the ability of 

any California law enforcement agency or official to communicate and cooperate with federal, civil, and 
criminal immigration law enforcement agencies and personnel.   

Staff Recommendation: None (Mayor Abed and Councilmember Morasco) 

13. 2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN UPDATE - 

Request the City Council review the Draft 2017-2018 City Council Action Plan and provide input 
regarding strategies aimed at accomplishing goals.  

Staff Recommendation: Provide Direction (City Manager's Office: Jay Petrek) 

 



FUTURE AGENDA 

14. FUTURE AGENDA - 

The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 

Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 

announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

CITY MANAGER’S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 

Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

 CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 

items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 

are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

April 12 - - No Meeting - 

April 19 - - No Meeting - 

April 26 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 

May 3 Wednesday 3:30 & 4:30 PM Regular Meeting City Council Chambers 



TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 

the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  

Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 

Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 

center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  

• In the Library (239 S. Kalmia) during regular business hours and  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 

inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 

Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  

The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 

home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 3:30 in Closed Session and 4:30 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule with City Clerk’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the CDC, Escondido Joint Powers 

Financing Authority and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 
 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 

Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 

Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx
file:///C:/Users/RVAQuestys/Downloads/www.escondido.org


Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: April 5, 2017 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

March 15, 2017 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:35 p.m. on Wednesday, March 15, 
2017 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Deputy Mayor John 
Masson, Councilmember Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

      

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

      

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to recess to Closed Session. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name: Bruce Masten v. City of Escondido  
Case No: WCAB Case No. ADJ9988882; ADJ Unassigned; ADJ9660507J 

IL CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code 04956.8) 
a. Property: Municipal Parking Lot #1, Municipal Parking Lot #2, and APNs 233-

091-01 through -17 
City Negotiator: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Touchstone Communities 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

b. Property: 901 West Washington Avenue 
City Negotiator: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Prospective Purchasers 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

Deputy Mayor Masson abstained and left the room for items IL a. and IL b. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 65 March 15, 2017 



ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 4:20 p.m. 

 

   

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

  

March 15, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 66 



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

March 15 1  2017 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

     

CALL TO ORDER 

    

     

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, March 15, 
2017 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION 
Tammy DeArmas led the Moment of Reflection. 

FLAG SALUTE 
Deputy Mayor Masson led the Flag Salute. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Deputy Mayor John 
Masson, Councilmember Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

Also present were: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager; Michael McGuinness, Interim City Attorney; Bill Martin, 
Director of Community Development; Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services; Diane Halverson, City 
Clerk; and Jennifer Ekblad, Deputy City Clerk. 

Ed Ehrhart, Escondido, expressed appreciation for the addition of crosswalks at the intersection of El Norte 
Parkway near Cypress Court. 

Scott Graves, Escondido, read a letter addressed to Christopher W. McKinney, Director of Utilities, from 
the San Pasqua! Valley Preservation Alliance regarding water and wastewater rates and growth in the City. 

Angelique Bennett, Escondido, requested the City Council adopt legislation to ban puppy mills in the City. 

Andrea Cunningham, Escondido, requested the City Council adopt legislation to ban puppy mills in the 
City. 

Jerry Van Leeuwen, Escondido, shared information regarding the upcoming Dancing with the Stars event 
at the California Center for the Arts, Escondido. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Councilmember Morasco to approve the following 
Consent Calendar items. Motion carried unanimously. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/ RRB) 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 67 March 15, 2017 



2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of March 1, 2017 

CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

4. ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS TO RESTRUCTURE THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
PROCESS AND STREAMLINE OTHER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESSES (AZ 16-0010) - 
Request the City Council approve amendments to Zoning Code Articles 1, 16, 19, 26, 39, 55, 57, and 
61; and approve the environmental determination. (File No. 0810-20) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Bill Martin) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-03R (First Reading and Introduction) 

Bill Martin, Director of Community Development, presented the staff report utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone would like to speak on this issue in any way. 

Jim Simmons, Escondido, thanked staff for their effort in regards to the amendments and spoke in favor of 
the proposed changes. 

Mayor Abed asked if anyone else wanted to speak on this issue in any way. No one asked to be heard. 
Therefore, Mayor Abed closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Masson and seconded by Councilmember Morasco to approve amendments 
to Zoning Code Articles 1, 16, 19, 26, 39, 55, 57, and 61; and approve the environmental determination and 
introduce Ordinance No. 2017-03R. Motion carried unanimously. 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

   

      

5. APPOINTMENTS TO THE LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES, COMMUNITY SERVICES 
COMMISSION, AND PERSONNEL BOARD OF REVIEW - 
Request the City Council ratify the Mayor's recommendation to fill two regular vacancies on the Library 
Board of Trustees, each for a three-year term, terms to expire on March 31, 2020; one regular vacancy 
on the Community Services Commission for a youth member to serve a one-year term, term to expire 
March 31, 2018, and two vacancies on the Personnel Board of Review, terms to expire March 31, 2018. 
(File No. 0120-10) 

Staff Recommendation: Ratify the Mayor's Appointments (City Clerk's Office: Diane 
Halverson) 

MOTION: Moved by Mayor Abed and seconded by Deputy Mayor Masson to ratify the Mayor's appointment of 
Mirek Gorney and Ron Guiles to the Library Board of Trustees. Motion carried unanimously. 

MOTION: Moved by Mayor Abed and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to ratify the Mayor's appointment of 
Maranda Hernandez to the Community Services Commission as a youth member. Motion carried unanimously. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 68 March 15, 2017 



MOTION: Moved by Mayor Abed and seconded by Councilmember Morasco to ratify the Mayor's appointment 
of Erika Dion to the Personnel Board of Review. Motion carried unanimously. 

6. AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO STANDARDIZED AGREEMENTS FOR PURCHASE AND 
SALE OF RECYCLED WATER FOR AGRICULTURAL USES - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Utilities to enter into standardized 
agreements with Agricultural Customers for a transitional potable water rate until recycled water is 
available. (File No. 0600-10 [A-3213]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-41R 

Christopher W. McKinney, Director of Utilities, presented the staff report utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Morasco and seconded by Deputy Mayor Masson to approve authorizing 
the Director of Utilities to enter into standardized agreements with Agricultural Customers for a transitional 
potable water rate until recycled water is available and adopt Resolution No. 2017-41R. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

7. UNDERGROUNDING IN LIEU FEE WAIVER REQUEST FOR CENTERPOINTE 78 PROJECT, 
ADM 13-027 - 
Request the City Council approve denying the waiver request based on the requirement of Escondido 
Municipal Code Section 23-48 and the need for funds to complete undergrounding projects. (File No. 
0480-55) 

Staff Recommendation: Approve the Denial of the Waiver Request (Engineering Services 
Department: Julie Procopio) 

Homi Namdari, Assistant City Engineer, presented the staff report utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Jim Simmons, applicant, requested Council approve the request to waive the undergrounding in lieu fee for 
the Centerpointe 78 Project. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Diaz and seconded by Deputy Mayor Masson to approve denying the 
waiver request based on the requirement of Escondido Municipal Code Section 23-48 and the need for funds 
to complete undergrounding projects. Ayes: Abed, Diaz, Masson. Noes: Gallo and Morasco. Motion carried. 

8. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

COUNCIL MEMBERS' SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

Councilmember Gallo provided information regarding a North County Transit District meeting on April 6, 2017 
at the Escondido Public Library from 1:00 p.m. — 3:00 p.m.; Maureen Stapleton, Executive Director of San Diego 
County Water Authority, will be presenting an update from the San Diego County Water Authority at the next 
City Council meeting. 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 69 March 15, 2017 



Deputy Mayor Masson attended a local League of California Cities meeting and discussed potential legislation. 

Mayor Abed attended a SANDAG Regional Planning Board meeting and shared information regarding SB 375; 
Escondido is in line with greenhouse gas reduction target rates. 

 

CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 6:24 p.m. 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

 

March 15, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 70 



Agenda Item No.: 3 
Date: April 5, 2017 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

March 22 1  2017 
3:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. on Wednesday, March 22, 
2017 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Deputy Mayor John 
Masson, Councilmember Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

Interim City Attorney Michael McGuinness recommended City Council recess to Closed Session and 
requested the addition of one Closed Session item to the agenda. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to add the following item to 
the Closed Session pursuant to Government Code section 54954.2(b)(2); that the need to take action arose 
subsequent to the posting of the agenda and to recess to Closed Session. Motion carried unanimously. 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54957.6) 
a. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 

Employee Organization: Non-Sworn Police Bargaining Unit 
b. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 

Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: 
Administrative/Clerical/Engineering Bargaining Unit 

c. Agency Negotiator: Sheryl Bennett and Jeffrey Epp 
Employee Organization: Escondido City Employee Association: Supervisory 

Bargaining Unit 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-- EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
54956.9(d)(1)) 

Case Name: Julia Hernandez v. City of Escondido 
Case No: 37-2015-00041588-CU-PO-NC 

March 22, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 71 



ADDED ITEM: 
III. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR (Government Code §54956.8) 

a. Property: Municipal Parking Lot #1, Municipal Parking Lot #2, and 
APNs 233-091-01 through -17 

City Negotiator: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager 
Negotiating Parties: Touchstone Communities 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Agreement 

DEPUTY MAYOR MASSON ABSTAINED AND LEFT THE ROOM FOR ITEM III. a. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 4:15 p.m. 

MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

  

March 22, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 72 



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

March 22 1  2017 
4:30 P.M. Meeting Minutes 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

The Regular Meeting of the Escondido City Council was called to order at 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, March 22, 
2017 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall with Mayor Abed presiding. 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION 
Terese Woll led the Moment of Reflection. 

FLAG SALUTE 
Councilmember Morasco led the flag salute. 

ATTENDANCE: 
The following members were present: Councilmember Olga Diaz, Councilmember Ed Gallo, Deputy Mayor John 
Masson, Councilmember Michael Morasco, and Mayor Sam Abed. Quorum present. 

Also present were: Jeffrey Epp, Interim City Manager; Michael McGuinness, Interim City Attorney; Bill Martin, 
Director of Community Development; Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services; Diane Halverson, City 
Clerk; and Jennifer Ekblad, Deputy City Clerk. 

PRESENTATIONS 
SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY — Issues Update - Maureen Stapleton presented information utilizing 
a Power Point 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS „ „ _ 

Bruce Sims, Escondido, requested the Council pass legislation to prevent third party billing of water and 
wastewater service fees. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Masson and seconded by Councilmember Gallo to approve all Consent 
Calendar items with the exception of item 6. Motion carried unanimously. 

1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY/RRB) 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council/Successor Agency) 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Regular Meeting of March 8, 2017 

Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 73 March 22, 2017 



4. HOUSING RELATED PARKS PROGRAM BUDGET ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve budget adjustments totaling $100,797, to reprogram Housing Related 
Parks (HRP) funds for multiple park projects, using Program Year (PY) 2014 and PY 2015 HRP funds 
from the Department of Housing and Community Development. (File No. 0430-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Public Works Department: Ed Domingue) 

5. BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FOR EMERGENCY PROJECTS - 
Request the City Council approve a budget adjustment to create a Capital Improvement Program 
project account to fund repair of emergency drainage projects. (File No. 0430-80) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

6. LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ASOCIACION DE CHARROS DE EL CABALLO PARK, AT 3400 
VALLEY CENTER ROAD - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute 
a Lease Agreement with Asociacion de Charros de El Caballo Park, at 3400 Valley Center Road. (File 
No. 0600-10 [A-2540]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department/Real Property: Julie 
Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-25 

Sergio Contreras, Escondido, expressed appreciation to the Council for renewing the lease with the 
Asociacion de Charros de El Caballo Park. 

MOTION: Moved by Deputy Mayor Masson and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing the 
Real Property Manager and the City Clerk to execute a Lease Agreement with Asociacion de Charros de El 
Caballo Park, at 3400 Valley Center Road and adopt Resolution No. 2017-25. Motion carried unanimously. 

7. CONTINUING EMERGENCY AND NEED TO REPAIR THE SEWER PIPELINE ON NORTH HALE 
AVENUE 
Request the City Council approve declaring that pursuant to the terms of Section 22050 of the California 
Public Contract Code, the City Council finds there is a need to continue the emergency action and pass 
a resolution by four-fifths vote declaring that public interest and necessity demand the expenditure to 
safeguard life, health, or property. (File No. 0600-10 [A-3208]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-42 

8. CONTINUING EMERGENCY AND NEED TO REPAIR THE SEWER PIPELINE IN GREEN TREE 
MOBILE HOME ESTATES - 
Request the City Council approve declaring that pursuant to the terms of Section 22050 of the California 
Public Contract Code, the City Council finds there is a need to continue the emergency action and pass 
a resolution by four-fifths vote declaring that public interest and necessity demand the expenditure to 
safeguard life, health, or property. (File No. 0600-10 [A-3213]) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Utilities Department: Christopher W. McKinney) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-43 

March 22, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 74 



CONSENT — RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/Successor 
Agency/RRB at a previous City Council/Successor Agency/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting. (The title of 
Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

9. ZONING CODE AMENDMENTS TO RESTRUCTURE THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 
PROCESS AND STREAMLINE OTHER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESSES (AZ 16-0010) - 
Approved on March 15, 2017 with a vote of 5/0 (File No. 0810-20) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-03R (Second Reading and Adoption) 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

10. AMENDING THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND BUDGET 
ADJUSTMENT - 
Request the City Council approve authorizing an amendment to the Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (RTIP) to update programming of TransNet funds, and adjust previously 
adopted Fiscal Year 2016/17 capital projects budgets; and approve a budget adjustment to reflect a 
net increase in funding to the FY 2017 Annual Street Resurfacing Program. (File No. 0430-30) 

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-36 

Michelle Collette, Accountant II, presented the staff report utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. 

Mayor Abed opened the public hearing and asked if anyone wanted to speak on the item in anyway. No one 
asked to be heard. Therefore, Mayor Abed closed the public hearing. 

MOTION: Moved by Councilmember Morasco and seconded by Councilmember Diaz to approve authorizing 
an amendment to the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) to update programming of 
TransNet funds, and adjust previously adopted Fiscal Year 2016/17 capital projects budgets; and approve a 
budget adjustment to reflect a net increase in funding to the FY 2017 Annual Street Resurfacing Program and 
adopt Resolution No. 2017-36. Motion carried unanimously. 

11. FUTURE AGENDA - 
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City 
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda 
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief 
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed. 

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Diane Halverson) 

Councilmember Gallo reported that North County Transit District will hold a public hearing on May 18, 2017 
regarding proposed route changes. 

March 22, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 75 



CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE/BRIEFING 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. 

• CITY MANAGER'S UPDATE - 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Abed adjourned the meeting at 5:20 p.m. 

MAYOR CITY CLERK 

DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

March 22, 2017 Escondido City Council Minutes Book 56 Page 76 



For City Clerk's Use: 

APPROVED 
Reso No. 

DENIED 
File No. 

City of Choice 
ESaADIDO 

Ord No. 

Agenda Item No.: 4 
Date: April 5, 2017 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Rick Vogt, Deputy Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: FY16 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP) Grant Acceptance 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council accept $121,095 in funding from the Department of Homeland 
Security (DHS) for the FY16 State Homeland Security Grant Program (SHSGP). It is also requested 
that the City Council authorize the Fire Chief to execute, on behalf of the City, all documents required 
for the management of this grant and that the City Council approve the necessary budget adjustment 
to establish new projects for tracking of these grant funds. 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The SHSGP is 100 percent federally funded. No matching funds are required and the City will be 
reimbursed for all expenditures. With the City Council approval, the City will receive a total of $121,095 
and funds will be used for the following items: 

• $60,548 — Strengthen Communications Capabilities: Funds will be used to purchase Project 25 
(P25) replacement portable radios for police first responders. 

$60,547 — Enhance Protection of Critical Infrastructure and Key Resources: Funds will be used to 
pay for temporary part-time salaries and benefits for a GIS position(s), not to exceed the total grant 
funding. These part-time GIS employees will be utilized by both Police and Fire Department to 
provide current and accurate pre-incident maps for all shopping centers, educational facilities, mobile 
home parks, hospitals, apartments, retirement facilities, and target hazards within the City of 
Escondido and the Rincon Fire Protection District. This project meets the State's goals by providing 
up-to-date pre-incident maps to enhance the protection of critical infrastructure. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On May 14, 2003, the City Council authorized the Fire Chief to participate in the DHS Homeland 
Security Grant Program. Also the City Council has approved several previous items relating to the 
SHSGP. Under this multi-year grant program, the City Council has accepted funds from FY02 through 



FY16 State Homeland Security Grant Program 
April 5, 2017 
Page 2 

FY15. The most recent City Council action was taken on December 2, 2015, when the City Council 
authorized the acceptance of the FY15 SHSGP grant. 

BACKGROUND: 

The SHSGP is multi-year grant program. The City began receiving DHS grant funding in 2003 and 
funding has continued each subsequent year at varying levels. The FY16 SHSGP is a continuation of 
Federal funding from the DHS. An example of some items purchased from previous DHS funding for 
Police and Fire first responders are: personal protective equipment (PPE), breathing apparatus, 
hazardous material bags, boots, gloves, suits, an explosive detection K-9, thermal imagers, chemical 
and radiological detection equipment, portable and mobile radios (for Police, Fire and Public Works), 
surveillance equipment for City Hall, and the Police/Fire Mobile Command Vehicle. In addition, funds 
have also been used for Emergency Operations Center (EOC) exercises and emergency management 
training and planning. 

SUMMARY: 

The SHSGP funds are intended to enhance first responder safety and readiness when responding to 
acts of terrorism as well as other natural or man-made disasters. Equipment, planning and training 
monies provided with these grant funds are invaluable and will improve our ability to respond to 
numerous types of incidents, whether it be an act of terrorism, a major wildland fire or a building collapse 
caused by a major earthquake. Without these grants a significant amount of funding from the City's 
General Fund would be required to meet the needs of these unique types of incidents. The FY16 
SHSGP funds will be used to continue strengthening and sustaining the City's preparedness 
capabilities. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Rick it 
Deputy Fire Chief 



ESCIADIDO 
City of Choice 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

Date of Request: March 28, 2017 

Department: Fire Department  

Division: Administration  

Project/Budget Manager: Lisa Bertrand 5407 
Name Extension 

Council Date (if applicable): April 5,2017  
(attach copy of staff report) 

Project/Account Description Account Number Amount of Increase Amount of Decrease 

SHSGP - Equipment 451 - New Project 60,548 

SHSGP - Plannin 451 - New Project 60,547 

Federal Grant - Revenue 4128-451 121,095 

Explanation of Request: 

The Police and Fire Departments are requesting a budget adjustment in order to establish projects to track funding 
for the grant award of $121,095 from the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) for the FY2016 State Homeland 
Security Grant Program (SHSGP). 

a,r PROVALS  

Departmen 

Distribution (after approval): 

City Manager Date  

312-6 17   
Date City Clerk Date 

Original: Finance 

na ce 

FM\105 (Rev.11/06) 

For Finance Use Only  

Log # g riQLf-01.  
Fiscal Year Z, 0 (  
ear 

 Budget Balances 
 General Fund Accts 
 Revenue 
 Interfund Transfers 

Fund Balance 



For City Clerk's Use: 

APPROVED DENIED 

Reso No. File No. 

Ord No. 

Agenda Item No.:  5 
Date: April 5, 2017 

City of Choice 
ESCOADIDO 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Danielle Lopez, Assistant Director of Community Services 
Jilaine Hernandez, Supervisor III 

SUBJECT: Senior Nutrition Budget Adjustment 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 

It is requested that the City Council approve a budget adjustment of $6,258, resulting from one-time-
only funds provided by the County of San Diego for the Senior Nutrition Program, and authorize the 
Interim City Manager and Director of Administrative Services to make the necessary budget 
adjustments to the Senior Nutrition budget. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval 

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The $6,258 budget adjustment to the Nutrition budget will enable staff to purchase 20 dining tables 
with a storage cart with no impact to the General Fund. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Escondido Older Adult Services Division received a grant in July 2016 from the County of 
San'Diego to offset the costs of the Senior Nutrition Program. On March 6, 2017, the County notified 
staff that the Program would receive one-time-only money, in the amount of $6,258, for the purchase 
of equipment. Specifically, this money will provide 20 dining tables with a storage cart for Nutrition 
Program operations. 

Respectfully submitted, 

bcuu:Lw qop-c6— /,,,ta,;,, 
Danielle Lopez Jilaine Hernandez 
Assistant Director of Community Services Supervisor III 



Name Extension 

Date of Request: April 5, 2017 

Department: Community Services 

Division: Older Adult Services 

Project/Budget Manager: Jilaine Hernandez 4384 

Council Date (if applicable): April 5,2017  
(attach copy of staff report) 

Finance Use On 

Log # 

Fiscal Year 

 Budget Balances 
 General Fund Accts 
 Revenue 

Interfund Transfers 
Fund Balance 

Other Capital Outla 5209-001-107 $6,258 

Project/Account Description 

Senior Nutrition Grant 

Account Number 

4113-001 

Amount of Increase 

$6,258 

Amount of Decrease 

APPROVALS  

City Manager Date 

City Clerk Date 

Distribution (after approval): Original: Finance 

FM\105 (Rev.11/06) 

ESCCIDIDO 
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

City of BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST 

Explanation of Request: 

Requesting an increase in Other Capital Outlay in order to purchase 20 dining tables with storage cart in the amount 
of $6,258.This amount will be reimbursed to the City via the County of San Diego Nutrition Grant, after the items are 
purchased and copies of the receipts are submitted to the County. 



























































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

1 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

GOAL: Ensure the long term vitality of Escondido’s local economy 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

1. Expand the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS) to target specific geographic areas based on current 
data and emerging economic trends. 

 

2. Utilize the OppSites online tool to promote target 
geographic development areas for economic investment. 

 

3. Leverage resources available through the Innovate 78 
partnership to market target development areas. 

 

4. Identify business attraction and expansion opportunities for 
non-retail businesses that generate sales tax revenue. 

The City developed its first Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS) in 2013. The CEDS included target development areas identified in the 
2012 General Plan. The CEDS will expire in February 2018, and staff are 
vetting consulting firms to develop the updated CEDS. 
 
President Trump’s proposed budget includes elimination of the Economic 
Development Administration, which is the approving agency for the CEDS. 
Staff will continue to stay apprised of new developments on this topic. 
 
In December 2016, an Economic Development Manager position was created 
in the City Manager’s Office to focus on proactive economic development. 
 

5. Establish the South Centre City Area Plan to improve 
residential and employment opportunities; update the 
existing land use matrix to attract new and expanded uses. 

Four interrelated General Plan Target Areas along Centre City Parkway south 
of Escondido’s Downtown have been identified for consolidation in a single 
Area Plan intended to guide future development.  This area is within the 
City’s urban core, in close proximity to infrastructure and transit, but 
contains underperforming land uses that would support an increase of 
densities and intensities. 
 

6. Evaluate and, if appropriate, develop funding mechanism(s) 
to improve inadequate infrastructure hindering 
development in the urban core. 

Aging utilities combined with increased fire flow requirements hinder 
downtown redevelopment by requiring extensive off-site improvements. The 
City has contracted with a consultant to explore the feasibility of establishing 
an EIFD in the urban core which could provide a funding source for 
infrastructure improvements. 
 

7. Continue prioritize and focus on the high profile projects 
currently in the entitlement process, evaluate opportunities 
for streamlining their processing, and work to attract 
additional development. 

 

Thirty-five significant projects are currently in the entitlement process 
representing significant private investment for the community. 

  



 

2 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

GOAL: Ensure the long term vitality of Escondido’s local economy 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

8. Involve the Escondido Chamber of Commerce in establishing 
business districts or groups to address the unique needs of 
business clusters.  
 

9. Assess whether business districts/groups would support a 
formalized structure to fund enhancements such as holiday 
decorations, lighting, landscaping, and security. 
 

Business districts and clusters in Escondido (Downtown, South Escondido 
Boulevard, East Valley Parkway, Craft Breweries, Auto Dealerships, etc.) have 
unique needs that may be better served by more a formal structure to 
address issues. 

10. Improve the competitiveness of our grant applications for 
funding the Citracado Parkway extension, including 
incorporating transit and affordable housing to the project. 
 

11. Continue working closely with resource agencies to obtain 
permits for completing the project.  

There is a $12.5M shortfall for funding the Citracado Parkway extension, a 
crucial infrastructure project that will fill a critical gap in Escondido’s 
transportation network and stimulate private investment in undeveloped 
industrial land. Cultural artifacts at the project site have complicated the 
permitting process with the resource agencies.  
 
The Federal Economic Development Administration (EDA) has provided 
positive feedback on a $3M grant once permits are obtained; however, the 
current proposed federal budget proposes elimination of the EDA. 

 

12. Amend Escondido’s Climate Action Plan (E-CAP) to be 
consistent with updated methodologies and standards to 
reduce potential litigation threats.  

Escondido’s Climate Action Plan (E-CAP) is outdated and legal challenges to 
its methodologies could hinder opportunities for future development. The E-
CAP anticipated a 2017 update to address post-2020 targets. 

 

13. Work with the Escondido Chamber of Commerce to gather 
feedback from the business community on temporary sign 
regulations. 
 

14. Conduct a Council workshop to present business feedback 
regarding temporary sign regulations for commercial areas. 
Consider modifying the sign ordinance to better reflect 
current business needs while preserving aesthetics. 
 

Temporary sign standards conflict with the needs of the business 
community. Enforcement of temporary sign standards for banners and flags 
leads to complaints from businesses. 

 

  



 

3 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

GOAL: Ensure the long term vitality of Escondido’s local economy 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

15. Evaluate whether self-storage facilities should be a 
permitted land use. Consider amending the zoning code and 
industrial specific plans as needed. 
 

16. Consider requiring self-storage applications to include an 
economic analysis substantiating community need and 
benefits. 
 

Escondido has a limited inventory of land that can accommodate job-
intensive uses. Self-storage facilities are permitted in certain zones, occupy 
large parcels, and create few employment opportunities. Approximately 
300,000 SF of self-storage facilities have recently been approved; there are 
17+ other facilities already in the City, which is the highest among all cities in 
North County. 

17. Evaluate transferring responsibility for ensuring adequate 
parking in existing multi-tenant commercial and industrial 
properties to property owners and leasing agents. 

The process for obtaining a business license in multi-tenant establishments is 
lengthened due to extensive review by the Planning Division to ensure 
adequate parking. 

 

18. Facilitate re-development of former Palomar downtown 
hospital site with land uses that support the City’s long-term 
vision. Actions include:  
a. Streamlining the entitlement process and work with 

developer to ensure a quality project that provides 
benefits to the downtown area and serves as a landmark 
for the East Valley Parkway and Grand Avenue 
Gateways.  

b. Assessing opportunities for incorporating a transit hub, 
as well as vacating adjacent streets to maximize 
development potential. 

c. Balancing residential and commercial densities and 
intensities to strengthen the customer base for 
downtown. 

 

Palomar Hospital’s 13+ acre downtown medical center campus was sold by 
the Palomar Health District. The property’s central location and proximity to 
Escondido’s downtown are key components in establishing a vibrant mixed 
use/transit oriented project that furthers the goals and vision for 
development in the urban core.   

  



 

4 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

GOAL: Ensure the long term vitality of Escondido’s local economy 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

19. Establish an alternative compliance program as an 
opportunity for enhancing the development potential of 
projects seeking off-site storm water treatment compliance. 
Actions include: 
a. Participating in the development of a regional program. 
b. Providing project areas for alternative compliance in 

Escondido. 
i. Seek Proposition 1 funding for projects included in 

the Storm Water Resource Plan for the San Diego 
Region. 

ii. Implement other projects that will support 
alternative compliance implementation, for example, 
hydrology/hydraulic studies of stream segments 
where restoration would be beneficial. 

 

Storm water treatment facilities must be provided for all significant 
development, which can adversely affect the build-out potential if provided 
on-site.  
 

Regional efforts have resulted in the development of water quality 
equivalency guidelines for projects within the storm drain system and 
preliminary framework for an alternative compliance program. 

 

A Hydraulic Study was completed and presented to the Technical Advisory 
Committee in Fall 2016. The three highest prioritized projects from the study 
have been included in the Regional Storm Water Resource Plan, a 
prerequisite for Proposition 1 funding. 

 

  



 

5 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

GOAL: Approve a balanced budget each year, as required by state law, that ensures the City’s fiscal stability 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

1. Establish regulations that limit the proliferation of targeted 
non-residential land uses that do not serve the broader 
interest of enhancing city revenues.     
 

2. Focus staff efforts and encourage applicants and owners 
towards employment-intensive and revenue generating 
land uses. 
 

3. Increase Transient Occupancy Tax revenues by assisting in 
the completion of Marriott Springhill Suites, and seek 
additional high-quality lodging opportunities. 

 

4. Conduct more periodic audits of Transient Occupancy Tax 
(TOT), franchise fees, and other revenues and agreements. 
Explore updated TOT collection regulations.  
 

5. Pursue negotiations with the County to increase the City’s 
apportion of property taxes for future annexations. 
 

6. Actively seek and apply for grants and other third source 
funding whenever possible. 

 

7. Evaluate opportunities for outsourcing city operations. 
 

Opportunities to optimize revenues require additional focus to ensure 
Escondido generates adequate funding for its operational and capital 
improvement needs.  
 
President Trump’s proposed budget may affect grant applications in future 
funding cycles (Community Development Block Grant, HOME funds, TIGER 
grants, etc.). 

 
 

8. Address the PERS unfunded liability through all appropriate 
measures including separate funding, budgeting, and 
reducing exposure.  
 

9. Schedule actuary John Bartel to present options to Council 
for addressing pension obligations and reduce the City’s 
unfunded liabilities in a fixed timeframe. 
 

As of June 30, 2015, the Miscellaneous Employee Plan’s funded ratio is 70.3% 
and the Safety Employee Plan’s ratio is 73.7%. These ratios are a 
measurement of how well-funded a plan is with respect to assets vs. accrued 
liabilities. The City will receive its annual CalPERS valuation reports in Summer 
2017. 



 

6 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: FISCAL MANAGEMENT 

GOAL: Approve a balanced budget each year, as required by state law, that ensures the City’s fiscal stability 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

10. Evaluate Development Impact and Processing fees and 
consider adjustments to more closely align with regional 
averages, cost recovery, and build-out needs. 
 

11. Continue to annually evaluate fees for services for full cost 
recovery. 
 

12. Identify cost-reducing and revenue-generating 
opportunities. 
 

13. Continue to update the City’s long-term financial plan 
utilizing the most recent financial information. 
 

14. Adopt financial policies to safeguard resources and strive to 
achieve target reserve balance. 

 

The General Fund target reserve balance is 25% of the General Fund 
operating revenue. This balance provides the City with the ability to manage 
risk when faced with external and internal financial pressures. The City has 
established a long-term financial plan that enables proactive management of 
its financial resources in the future. 

  



 

7 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

1. Continue the Neighborhood Transformation Project (NTP) 
through a variety of efforts: 
a. Conduct a City Manager’s meeting with department 

heads affirming the NTP as a citywide priority to ensure 
its overall effectiveness and to incorporate any updated 
Council direction; 

b. Hold quarterly meetings and document measurable 
NTP goals in an Executive Summary Progress Report; 

c. Continue to explore funding sources/grants; 
d. Expand outreach with other city departments to 

explore opportunities for furthering the identified goals 
and objectives of the NTP. 

 

The Neighborhood Transformation Program has successfully involved multiple 
departments collaborating with residents in targeted areas to improve 
neighborhood aesthetics, security, communication, and cooperation.  

 
 
 

2. Continue to reorganize Code Enforcement staff to full time 
staffing and secure additional funding to facilitate the 
hiring of two new Code Enforcement Officers (CEO).  
 

3. Explore opportunities for implementing a code 
enforcement model where full time CEO are assigned to 
districts that correspond to the Police Officer districts, 
allowing greater coordination with PD and a more COPS-
oriented approach for Code Enforcement. 
 

Code Enforcement has approximately 500 active cases assigned to staff. 
Current staffing levels have limited enforcement capability focused primarily 
on servicing incoming complaints and requests. 

 
Reliance on part-time code enforcement staff has resulted in retention 
challenges. 

4. Establish a proactive commercial district street light 
conversion and replacement program with a goal of five 
conversions per week in targeted commercial districts. 
 

Public Works’ street light maintenance and repair plan is reactive rather than 
proactive. Street light outages in commercial districts are less likely to be 
reported to Public Works than outages in residential districts. 

 

  



 

8 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

5. Continue aggressive graffiti removal and consider 
eradication through a variety of efforts:  
a. Re-institute reward program for arrest and convictions 

of violators; 
b. Partner with middle and high schools to assist with 

gathering data on tagger monikers and identification; 
c. Partner with neighborhood groups and property 

owners to address graffiti in their neighborhoods; 
d. Transfer obligation to remove graffiti to property 

owners in circumstances where repeat offenses occur; 
e. Utilize community volunteers for removal; 
f. Establish performance standards for removing graffiti 

within a certain time period; 
g. Establish a program that allows community volunteers 

to conduct removal in public areas; 
h. Consider contracting for graffiti removal; 
i. Reinitiate proactive distribution of graffiti removal kits 

at meetings and forums;  
j. Promote graffiti removal kits in newsletter and at 

neighborhood meetings. 
 

Graffiti is escalating and eradication is costly in materials and labor hours. 
 
In 2013, staff began promoting City graffiti removal kits to neighborhood 
group meetings to increase accessibility to the kits and promote proactive 
approaches to graffiti removal by residents. Over time, fewer kits were 
distributed in this manner. 

 

6. Conduct targeted mini-sweeps in specific neighborhoods 
with higher numbers of appearance issues.  
 

7. Focus code enforcement resources on the most egregious 
violations that impact safety and aesthetics. 
 

8. Involve a variety of outreach opportunities, including utility 
bill inserts, Chamber of Commerce publications, 
neighborhood newsletters, etc., to convey the importance 
of appropriate property maintenance. 

Several residential neighborhoods in the city core have a proliferation of 
graffiti, trash, debris, illegal parking and inoperable vehicles. This is partly 
addressed through the Storm Water Residential Inspection program that 
requires inspections to address potential water quality issues, which also 
overlap with other concerns (trash, debris, poor maintenance). 



 

9 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

9. Subject to available funding, establish a goal of completing 
signal synchronization of one corridor per year.  
 

10. Investigate the application of adaptive signal timing and 
potential grant funding for its implementation. 
 

11. Continue including the County and Caltrans with the City’s 
traffic synchronization efforts in areas where the 
coordinated timing would provide the most benefit. 
 

Traffic signal synchronization has been completed on four major corridors. 
The cost to coordinate each corridor is $30,000 and there is no designated 
funding source. Signal synchronization is calibrated to address peak hour 
conditions, but disruption occurs during/after pedestrian and emergency 
calls. 

12. Conduct a City Council workshop to review the City’s utility 
undergrounding policy to determine its appropriateness.  

City policy allows developments to pay a fee in lieu of undergrounding 
overhead utilities when the cost is excessive or unfeasible. These fees are 
accumulated to fund the undergrounding of overhead utilities in priority areas 
that provide the most aesthetic value.  

 

13. Create a fact sheet for residents explaining options for the 
completion of sidewalk improvements in their area through 
assessment districts. 
 

Many older neighborhoods lack sidewalk improvements.  

14. Implement the Spruce Street Channel Improvement 
Project. 
 
 

 

The Spruce Street Channel Improvement Project Engineering design is 
underway to remedy an Escondido Creek tributary that experiences flooding 
of adjacent properties. The City has successfully applied for grants to assist in 
project implementation. 

 

15. Implement approved Watershed Quality Improvement 
Plans that identify strategies for improving water quality. 
 

Escondido has Watershed Quality Improvement Plans accepted by the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board that focus on minimizing trash, debris, 
and pathogens from entering creeks and storm drains.  

 

16. Prioritize and implement additional improvements along 
Escondido Creek following City Council direction. 

A hydraulic study completed in 2016 included preliminary calculations for 
Escondido Creek within El Caballo Park and Grape Day Park to potentially 
incorporate naturalized features that would improve aesthetics. 

 

  



 

10 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

17. Improve the appearance and functionality of City parks and 
older neighborhoods through implementation of the CIP 
program to enhance or convert existing park features and 
to add sidewalks and improve lighting in CDBG eligible 
areas. 

 

Older neighborhoods have infrastructure deficiencies, including gaps in 
sidewalks and poor street lighting. Older parks also have some underutilized 
facilities that can be repurposed or enhanced to maximize use and improve 
users’ experiences. 

18. Improve and maintain current parks through a variety of 
efforts: 
a. Consider conditioning development projects to provide 

public outdoor meeting and recreational spaces that 
are privately maintained; 

b. Evaluate “Adopt-a-Park” and other volunteer-based 
programs for maintenance at existing parks; 

c. Continue to improve existing park facilities through 
Housing Related Parks grant program; 

d. Complete new features and facilities in parks focused 
on requiring minimal maintenance. 

 

Current budget constraints create challenges for maintaining park facilities. 

19. Present Council with a fundraising plan for a new skate 
park at Washington Park. 

The City Council directed staff in January 2017, to develop a funding strategy 
for the potential development of a skate park in Washington Park, with future 
development plans for skate spots in various city parks. 

 

20. Continue development of vision for Library/Grape Day 
Park. Identify next concerted steps to take to move vision 
to reality. 

Council has requested community input on the proposed new Library site 
prior to issuing a Request for Qualifications. 

  



 

11 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

21. Consider community surveys to assess community 
satisfaction. If directed by the City Council, release a 
Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit consultant bids for 
conducting a resident satisfaction survey. 
 

The City has never formally conducted a resident satisfaction survey. Other 
comparable cities conduct professionally developed resident satisfaction 
surveys on a regular basis. Escondido reviewed proposals from firms to 
conduct a resident satisfaction survey in 2011, but did not move forward with 
the project due to cost concerns. 

 

22. Develop a comprehensive Communications Plan for the 
City, including strategies for social media and other 
engagement tools. 
 

23. Develop and launch a new City of Escondido website. 
 

The City created a Communications Officer position in December 2016, to 
enhance external City communications channels including website and social 
media. 

 

24. Continue partnering Project NEAT with NTP efforts in 
targeted areas of the community. 
 

25. Continue to distribute educational material and attend 
meetings to educate residents about code violations. 
 

26. Include code violation information in the monthly 
neighborhood newsletter and in neighborhood group 
agendas.  
 

27. Continue to prepare a NEAT Sweep schedule to ensure all 
groups are proactively inspected prior to their cleanup 
date. 
 

28. Continue to work towards decreasing the number of 
violations in neighborhood groups through Project NEAT.  
 

Since 2012, Project NEAT (Neighborhood Enhancement, Awareness and 
Training) has implemented “NEAT Sweeps,” a proactive approach to identify 
and resolve code violations in Escondido’s 18 organized neighborhood groups 
in anticipation of neighborhood group cleanups, thus maximizing the 
opportunities to correct violations, especially those related to blight. Project 
NEAT staff attends meetings to educate residents on common code violations 
and to distribute educational material aimed at preventing additional code 
violations. Staff has seen a significant decrease in the number of code 
violations in neighborhood groups year after year. 

 
In April 2014, Project NEAT began collaborating with the Escondido Police 
Department’s NTP project to identify, resolve and educate the residents 
within about code violations. 

  



 

12 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

GOAL: Improve aesthetics, design, land uses, services, and accessibility to support community needs 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

29. Monitor the Rose to Foxdale parking district for parking 
and neighborhood appearance issues during the pilot 
program period and report findings to the City Council. 
 

30. Consider efficacy and success of the RTF parking district 
and determine if requests from other neighborhood groups 
warrant additional parking districts. 
 

Neighborhood Transformation Program 2 identified a neighborhood with 
extreme parking issues. Neighbors daily placed trash cans and other items 
along the street to reserve parking, degrading neighborhood appearance. 
Staff worked with the residents to form the “Rose to Foxdale (RTF) 
Neighborhood Group” in 2015 and a parking district in 2016/2017. 

31. Consider expanding the Façade & Property Improvement 
Grant Program to include murals and CPTED (Crime 
Prevention Through Environmental Design) elements as 
stand-alone, eligible improvements. 

 

The Façade & Property Improvement program has successfully assisted 
businesses since 1989 to improve non-residential properties resulting in 
increased customer activity. Only comprehensive exterior improvement 
projects are eligible for grant funds. Business owners have recommended 
expanding the program’s eligible improvements to better meet their needs. 
Currently, there are no unencumbered funds remaining in the budget. 

 

  



 

13 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: PUBLIC SAFETY 

GOAL: Maintain a safe environment for Escondido with high quality emergency services 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

1. Develop a Strategic Plan for Homelessness through a 
variety of efforts: 
a. Collaborate with other agencies and program providers 

to discover best practices; 
b. Coordinate with PERT (Psychiatric Emergency Response 

Team) regarding homeless issues; 
c. Continue to liaison with local business groups; 
d. Participate in regional efforts (Alliance for Regional 

Solutions, Continuum of Care, Project One for All); 
e. Fund a range of homeless services - from homelessness 

prevention to shelter care to rapid rehousing (with case 
management) with CDBG and ESG funds and 
permanent housing with HOME funds; 

f. Continue to consider applications for site 
improvements from non-profit organizations working 
with homeless/at-risk (including domestic violence 
shelters) populations; 

g. Consider an increase in funding to the Alliance for 
Regional Solutions to address regional homelessness. 

 

Homelessness requires a large commitment of resources and constitutes a 
significant portion of overall calls for service. 
 

A Community Oriented Policing (COPS) Unit, consisting of four officers and 
one sergeant, was formed in January 2017 dedicated to addressing 
homelessness issues.  

 

Non-profit organizations working with homeless populations, and those at 
risk of homelessness, cannot meet the needs of people requiring assistance. 

2. Leverage our current police officers to have more presence 
through a variety of efforts:  
a. Schedule briefings with Police Chief and the City Council 

regarding staffing deployment; 
b. Increase proactive patrol time; 

i. Continue to explore calls for service and increased 
efficiency; 

ii. Continue to explore new technologies to improve 
effectiveness; 

c. Continue pursuing grants to increase police staffing. 
 

High call volumes prohibit police officers’ ability to conduct proactive 
enforcement. 
 
Two additional part-time custody transport officers were hired in February 
2017 for a total of five. 



 

14 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN | April 5, 2017 

2017-2018 DRAFT CITY COUNCIL ACTION PLAN 

PRIORITY AREA: PUBLIC SAFETY 

GOAL: Maintain a safe environment for Escondido with high quality emergency services 

STRATEGY CURRENT REALITY 

3. Address the current gang issues through a variety of 
efforts: 
a. Increase proactive patrol time; 
b. Continue the NTP in high crime areas; 
c. Enhance PAL (Police Athletic League), FIT (Family 

Intervention Team), EGRIP (Escondido Gang Reduction 
and Intervention Program), Girls Rock, etc.;  

d. Maintain excellent partnerships with outside law 
enforcement agencies; 

e. Include all community partners in solving gang 
problems. 

 

The police department continues to conduct proactive gang enforcement and 
investigations. 

4. Evaluate opportunities of establishing a long-term contract 
with another law enforcement agency that provides 
funding for expanding the Range including:  
a. Determining whether the Range expansion is 

sustainable, and identifying what would be needed to 
meet the anticipated return on investment; 

b. Identifying opportunities and challenges with City of 
Escondido stakeholders to accommodate the 
expansion;  

c. Approaching community stakeholders to discuss needs, 
expectations, and commitments for additional capital 
so further improvements can be made.  

 

The Police Firing Range Training Facility (Range) has a previously adopted 
Master Plan that describes its future build-out. The City contracts with 
multiple law enforcement agencies who use the Range for training purposes.  
The Range is annually generating approximately $50,000 from contracts with 
these outside agencies.  
 
The Range’s current capacity, and inadequate funding, constrains 
opportunities for building out the facility and maximizing its potential as a 
regional training facility and revenue generator. 
 
The Escondido Police Department has been approached by a law enforcement 
agency who currently trains at the Range with an opportunity for a substantial 
long-term contract that could provide funding to expand the facility.  
 

5. Explore regional partnerships to increase efficiencies and 
enhance services.  

Escondido Police and Fire Departments’ call volumes are outpacing available 
resources resulting in ever increasing staffing needs for responding to 
emergency demands.  
 

 





 

 1 

March 30, 2017 
 
SPECIAL EVENTS 

 

 Cal South State Cup Youth Soccer Tournament  

Saturday, April 1 and Sunday, April 2 -- Ryan Park 
 
The tournament will be hosting 64, 32, and 16 single elimination rounds.  Over 1,100 
families will be traveling to Escondido from all over Southern California for the 
tournament. Cal South will be using all 8 fields for the 15 and up boy’s divisions. 
Families will be dining, shopping and lodging in Escondido during the tournament. 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS   
SDG&E Electric Vehicle Charging 
 
The City is aiming to partner with SDG&E to bring electric vehicle charging stations to certain 
City facilities and large businesses. These stations assist in the goal of becoming a Smart City 
and help Escondido remain environmentally friendly. Information on electric vehicle charging is 
available at:  
http://www.sdge.com/clean-energy/residential/charge-while-you%E2%80%99re-away  
 
Notice of Treatment for the Asian Citrus Psyllid  
 

The Asian citrus psyllids, an exotic pest affecting citrus trees, was identified for the community 
of San Pasqual in San Diego County. The pests are susceptible to the California Department 
of Food and Agriculture’s treatment plan. Residents of affected properties are notified 48 hours 
in advance of any treatment that will occur. Treatment information is available at the following 
link: https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/plant/acp/treatment_maps.html  
 
Affordable Housing – Community Housing Works 

 
A recent news article by KPBS highlighted Community Housing Works and their renovation of 
the Manzanita Apartments at 260 North Midway Drive. The City of Escondido invested federal 
HOME funds in the project and aided in preserving 200 affordable housing units. The full 
article is available at: http://www.kpbs.org/news/2017/mar/24/non-profit-developers-compete-
profit-developers-pr/  
 
Ruby Award Nomination – City of Escondido 
 
The City of Escondido has been nominated for a Ruby Award by the San Diego Housing 
Federation for its support in assisting Community Housing Works. The nomination project 
preserved and rehabilitated 200 affordable housing units that are located at the Manzanita 
Apartments (formerly the Cypress Cove Apartments). Award information is available at: 
http://housingsandiego.org/events-training/ruby-awards/  



 

 2 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
San Diego’s Economic Pulse 
 

The San Diego Economic Pulse is a monthly update providing an insight into our local 
economy. The report provides unemployment data, new business information and vital 
information about the San Diego region. The full monthly report is available at: 
http://www.sandiegobusiness.org/sites/default/files/San%20Diego's%20Economic%20Pulse%
20-%20March%202017.pdf  
 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
Major Projects Update 
 
Commercial / Office:  
 
1. Escondido Research and Technology Center – East (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 

Project review and communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new 
milestones to report this week: This is a 72,000 square foot medical office building proposed 
on the east side of Citracado Parkway across from Palomar Medical Center located at 2130 
Citracado Parkway. A grading permit has been issued by the Engineering Division. Building 
plans have been submitted for plan check. A grading plan for a temporary parking lot to serve 
the hospital was approved June 13, 2016, and the parking lot is now under construction. 
 

2. Escondido Research and Technology Center – West (ERTC) (Developer: James McCann) – 
Project review and communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new 
milestones to report this week: This is a 144,000 sq. ft. development involving two medical 
office buildings proposed on the west side of Citracado Parkway across from Palomar 
Medical Center located at 2097 – 2175 Citracado Parkway. A grading permit has been 
issued by the Engineering Division. Esgil and the Planning Division have approved the 
building plans. A modified building permit to add a linear accelerator has been approved. A 
fee deferral agreement has been signed and the building permit was issued June 23, 2016. A 
revised grading plan recently has been approved and grading is underway. 

 
3. Centerpointe 78 Commercial (Developer: Lars Andersen, Pacific Development) – This project 

is a 45,650 sq. ft. supermarket and drive-thru restaurant located at 925 N. Broadway. The 
project was approved by the City Council on December 9, 2015. Demolition of the former 
auto dealership has been completed down to the foundation. Grading plans have been 
submitted to Engineering and Planning for review. Engineering has provided second plan 
check comments for the off-site improvements and third plan check comments for the 
grading plan and are awaiting revised storm water plans prior to approving the grading 
permit. A building permit for the supermarket is ready to issue once the grading plan is 
approved. A boundary adjustment application to place the two buildings on separate parcels 
is currently being reviewed by Planning. 

 



 

 3 

4. Westfield Theater (Developer: Kim Brewer, Westfield) – This project has been placed on hold 
by Westfield while they finalize lease negotiations so there is no change from the following 
update reported last week:  This project is a 10-auditorium movie theater totaling 57,600 sq. 
ft. located on the north side of the Westfield Mall. The project was approved by the City 
Council on November 4, 2015. No grading, building or improvement plans have been 
submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
5. Felicita Development, LLC (Developer: Katherine Park, Creative Design Associates) – This 

project is on hold pending further direction and submittal of information from the applicant: 
This project is a 140-unit hotel, and a gas station or office/residential care facility at the 
southeast corner of Felicita Rd. and Gamble Lane. The applicant and staff met with the 
architect to discuss building elevations, five-story height limitations and site design issues 
given the existing wetland constraints on the property. The project application remains 
incomplete as additional technical analysis and coordination is needed to address traffic, 
biology, water and sewer service, geotechnical and storm water concerns, along with a 
market study for the proposed uses. Follow-up meetings conducted by the applicant with 
staff and the wildlife agencies lead staff to believe a revised project is forthcoming. The 
project is on hold pending further direction and submittal of information from the applicant. 

 
6. Springhill Suites (Developer: Raj Patel, San Bernardino Hospitality LLC) – The applicant is 

cleared to start construction so there is no change from the following update reported last 
week: This project is a four-story, 105-suite hotel totaling 73,300 sq. ft. located at 200 La 
Terraza Drive. The hotel includes a small conference room and an enlarged lobby for serving 
continental breakfast. A revised set of grading plans has been approved since February 2016 
and grading for the hotel site has started. Building plans have been approved and permit fees 
were paid before the end of the year clearing the way for construction to commence. On 
January 3, 2017, a new ownership group met with the City Council Economic Development 
Subcommittee and staff to discuss renewing the now-expired Economic Incentive Agreement 
that had been granted to the original developer.  The City Council approved a new Economic 
Incentive Agreement on January 25, 2017. Construction is expected to commence within the 
next two months. 

 
7. Escondido Auto Park Association (Developer: Tim Brecht, Escondido Auto Park Association) 

The applicant is cleared to start construction so there is no change from the following update 
reported last week: The association is proposing to upgrade the existing electronic message 
sign along I-15. An application for a new regional market sign and an amendment to the Sign 
Ordinance to increase the allowable display area for a regional market sign was submitted to 
the Planning Division on May 6, 2016. The proposed sign would be located in the same 
location as the existing sign at a slightly lower height (73.5 feet) with approximately the same 
overall dimensions. The Planning Commission recommended approval of the new regional 
market sign and amendment to the Sign Ordinance on July 12, 2016. The City Council 
approved the new regional market sign and amendment to the Sign Ordinance on August 17, 
2016. A building permit for the sign was issued on January 19, 2017.  

 



 

 4 

8. Downtown Courtyard Marriott Hotel (Developer: Craig Clark) – A modification to a Master 
Plan and a Precise Plan for a revised downtown hotel design consisting of 154 rooms in four 
stories over ground-level parking. The majority of the building would be located in the parking 
lot between City Hall and the CCAE conference center. The primary entry to the hotel would 
be from a redesigned entry drive with new porte cochere on Escondido Boulevard. The hotel 
would operate the conference center and would provide a bistro and bar area for guests.  
The application was submitted on November 18, 2016 for processing and review. During the 
course of review, City staff transmitted comments incrementally to the applicant. A final letter 
summarizing all requested revisions and/or corrections was sent to the applicant on 
December 22, 2016. City staff met with the development team on January 10, 2017 to 
discuss the staff comment letter. The applicant provided revised conceptual drawings on 
March 17, 2017 to facilitate future project discussions. Those drawings are currently being 
reviewed by staff. 

 
9. Centre City Commercial Center (Developer: Todd Dwyer) - This commercial redevelopment 

project proposes a 15,870 square foot commercial shopping center on the southeast corner 
of Centre City Parkway and W. Mission Avenue, addressed as 425 W. Mission Avenue 
(former Wagon Wheel Restaurant and Palm Tree Lodge). The project would include three 
buildings, two of which contain drive-thru restaurants along with other retail or restaurant 
tenant spaces. The third building would be a drive-thru self-serve carwash. A Plot Plan and 
Tentative Parcel Map were submitted on January 31, 2017, and staff review is underway. 
The applicant’s environmental consultant is currently preparing a Draft Initial Study/MND for 
initial review by staff. A traffic study prepared by the applicant’s traffic consultant has been 
reviewed by Engineering staff and the applicant been notified that additional refinements 
will be required to appropriately reflect the potential impact and mitigation. 

 
Industrial 

 
1. StorQuest (Developer: The William Warren Group, Inc.) – Project review and 

communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new milestones to report 
this week: This proposed project at 220 W. Mission Avenue involves a 102,500 sq. ft., four-
story self-storage facility development with three in-line shops and a small office. The 
Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed General Plan 
Amendment, Planned Development and Zone Change on August 9, 2016. The project was 
approved by the City Council on September 14, 2016.  A grading plan was submitted for 
review on November 3, 2016.  Building plans were submitted during the week of December 
19, 2016. Both grading and building plans have been returned to the applicant with staff 
comments. Staff is awaiting resubmittal of revised plans from the applicant.  
 



 

 5 

2. Victory Industrial Development (Developer: Scott Merry, Badiee Development) – This project 
involves two industrial buildings totaling 91,000 sq. ft. (one building 55,500 sq. ft., second 
building 35,500 sq. ft.) located at 2005 Harmony Grove Road and a zone change from 
residential to Planned Industrial consistent with the updated General Plan. The Planning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed General Plan Amendment, 
Planned Development and Zone Change on August 9, 2016. It was approved by the City 
Council on September 14, 2016. Building plans were submitted into plan check the following 
day and have been approved by Esgil while Planning awaits a resubmittal in response to 
previous comments. Boundary adjustment applications with three property owners in the 
adjacent Harmony Grove Business Park that are needed to implement the project design 
were submitted to Planning on February 8, 2017 and are being readied by staff for signature 
and recording. It is expected the grading permit can be issued once the applicant secures his 
Army Corps, Regional Board, and CA Fish and Wildlife permits. 
 

3. Escondido Self-Storage Facility (Developer: Brandywine Homes, Inc.) – A modification to a 
Master and Precise Development Plan for revisions to the design of a previously approved, 
but not yet constructed, self-storage facility at 2319 Cranston Drive. The project proposes 
approximately 77,500 SF of storage area in two buildings. The larger building is two stories 
over a basement with all interior loading. The smaller building is one-story with some exterior 
roll-up doors. The project was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission on 
September 13, 2016, and the City Council approved the project on October 12, 2016. 
Building plans were submitted the week of December 11, 2016, and all departments have 
provided comments. Grading plans, landscape plans and the final map also have been 
submitted and comments have been provided by staff. 

 
4. Innovative Industrial Development (Developer: Scott Merry, Badiee Development) – This 

project involves a unique proposal in which two potential industrial development scenarios 
were analyzed for the 5.76-acre site located at 1925 Harmony Grove Road, directly in front of 
the “Victory Industrial Development” described above. The first development scenario 
involves a single tenant building with 98,500 square feet and 197 parking spaces. The 
alternative scenario envisions three industrial buildings roughly within the same footprint as 
the single tenant proposal. The three industrial buildings would include a total of 86,000 
square feet with 234 parking spaces. The Planning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of this project on December 13, 2016. The City Council approved the proposal as 
recommended by the Planning Commission on January 11, 2017. The applicant has notified 
staff that he intends to move forward with construction of the three-building design. Grading 
plans were submitted for plan check on February 27, 2017 and comments have been 
provided back to the applicant.  Building plans were submitted on March 29, 2017 and are 
being reviewed by staff. 

 



 

 6 

5. North American Self-Storage (Developer: Russ Colvin) – This project at 852 Metcalf 
proposes a 132,556 square foot, self-storage facility consisting of four stories over a full 
basement level on a 1.12-acre site in the M-1 zone. A Plot Plan application was submitted to 
Planning on September 14, 2016 and a conditional letter of approval was issued on 
December 21, 2016. An erosion control and demo permit has been approved. The applicant 
has submitted grading, building and landscape plans into plan check under the City’s 
“expedited plan- check” pilot program. Staff comments on the first grading plan check were 
issued 12 working days following the first submittal and staff is awaiting the second plan 
check submittal from the applicant. The applicant submitted building plans into plan check on 
March 8, 2017. Those plans are currently being reviewed by Esgil, Planning and Fire under 
the expedited plan check program. Planning comments have been provided to the applicant. 
 

City Projects 

 
1. Micro-Filtration Reverse Osmosis (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – No 

further updates to this item will be provided while litigation is in progress: The proposed 
project involves a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the development of a new City facility 
to provide advanced treatment for recycled water produced at the City of Escondido’s Hale 
Avenue Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) for agricultural uses with the capacity for 
future treatment for indirect potable reuse. The facility would be sized for a total production 
capacity of 2.0 million gallons per day (mgd). A previous proposal for development of the 
facility at 2512 East Washington Avenue has now been shelved while staff pursues 
development of the facility on an alternative site located on the southeastern corner of 
Washington Avenue and Ash Street. On July 20, 2016, the City Council approved a first-
phase design contract with Black and Veatch for the design effort need to bring the new 
site design to the Planning Commission for CUP consideration. Site and building design 
concepts have been developed and two neighborhood meetings were held on October 12, 
2016 and November 3, 2016. A 30-day public review period for the proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration ended on November 27, 2016. The Planning Commission approved 
the proposed CUP on December 13, 2016. An appeal of that decision was filed and the 
City Council denied the appeal on January 11, 2017 and affirmed the Planning 
Commission’s decision to approve the project. 

 
2. Wastewater Collections Yard Expansion (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) 

– No change from the following update reported last week:  The project involves 
development of 1.8 acres of a larger, approximately 15.4-acre site for the construction of a 
new wastewater collections yard and maintenance facility for the City’s Hale Avenue 
Resource Recovery Facility (HARRF) at 1521 S. Hale Avenue. The proposed facilities will 
consist of three separate pre-fabricated metal buildings 3,735 sq. ft. - 5,670 sq. ft. for 
collections; work bays and workshops for regular maintenance of vehicles and equipment. 
The project would require the processing of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and rezone. 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing and recommended approval on May 10, 
2016. It was approved by the City Council on June 15, 2016. Grading, building and 
landscape plans are now being reviewed by staff for permit issuance. 



 

 7 

3. HARRF Biogas to Energy Project (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department) – 
Communications with the applicant are on-going but no construction plans have been 
submitted since the project was approved and there are no new milestones to report this 
week:  This project is a proposed Conditional Use Permit that will utilize the existing digester 
gas created during the sewage treatment process to power two generators with a combined 
output of 1,200 kW of power. The gas which is currently being flared on the site will be 
redirected for a useful purpose and used to offset the HARRF’s demand on utility natural gas 
and electricity from SDG&E. A Conditional Use Permit for the project was approved by the 
Planning Commission December 13, 2016.   

 
4. Lake Wohlford Replacement Dam (Developer: City of Escondido Utilities Department)  – This 

project consists of the construction of a replacement dam downstream (west) from the 
existing dam at Lake Wohlford, as well as partial deconstruction of the existing dam. In 1924, 
hydraulic fill was added to increase the overall height of the original dam from 76 feet to 100 
feet. A 2007 seismic analysis of the dam identified a stability concern for the raised portion of 
the dam in the event of a major earthquake. As a result, the City reduced the reservoir’s 
water level to limit the risk of a potential failure. The water level reduction decreased the 
reservoir’s capacity to approximately 40% of its prior size. To improve the dam’s seismic 
safety and regain the lost water storage capability, the City is planning to construct the 
replacement dam so the resultant reservoir level and storage capacity are equal to the 
elevation and capacity prior to the water level restriction, at 1,480 feet elevation and 6,500 
acre feet, respectively. AECOM working under contract to the civil engineer (Black & Veatch) 
was selected to prepare an Environmental Impact Report for the project.  A Draft EIR was 
prepared and issued for a 45-day public review period that began on October 4, 2016 and 
closed on November 17, 2016. Staff and AECOM are now in the process of coordinating 
responses to the comments that were received during the public review period. As part of 
that effort, Utilities and Planning staff met with representatives of the permitting agencies on 
March 14, 2017 to discuss biological mitigation requirements. AECOM is now in the process 
of setting up a field meeting for the permitting agencies to view the site. 

 
Institutional 

 
1. Escondido United Reformed Church (Developer: Brent Cooper) – The project is an 

expansion for a phased, multi-year, master construction/development plan for a new 12,250 
SF two-story sanctuary, conversion of existing buildings to a social hall, demolition of an 
existing social hall/classroom building (approx. 4,620 SF) and construction of approximately 
5,250 SF for a nursery, multi-purpose room, classrooms for Sunday school at 1864 N. 
Broadway. Revised architectural plans were unanimously approved by the Planning 
Commission on June 14, 2016. A revised grading plan is close to approval. Building plans 
have gone through one round of plan check and the applicant is now discussing with 
Planning the possibility of adding floor area to the classroom building. 
 



 

 8 

2. Emmanuel Faith Community Church (Developer: Jim North, EFCC) – The applicant is 
cleared to start construction on the Phase I children’s building.  No plans have been 
submitted for any other phases so there is no change from the following update reported last 
week: The project is a phased, multi-year construction and renovation program for the 
Emmanuel Faith campus that includes demolishing the existing children’s rooms and 
constructing a new nursery and children’s building for up to 200 children, construction of a 
two-story training center/youth complex, renovation of the existing high school/college 
building, conversion of the existing education center into an office and meeting room building, 
demolition of the existing café and construction of a new café, demolition and construction of 
a new maintenance building, construction of a new gathering plaza with baptismal outdoor 
water feature, and reconstruction and expansion of the existing worship center from 1,600 
seats to 2,000 seats. The Planning Commission approved the proposed modification to the 
Conditional Use Permit for the campus on June 9, 2015. Grading, building and landscape 
plans for the first phase (45,414 square foot new children’s building) have been reviewed by 
staff and Esgil. The grading permit has been approved and the building permit for the 
children’s building was issued on February 28, 2017. 
 

3. Self-Realization Fellowship Center (Developer: John Pyjar, Domusstudio Architecture – 
Project review and communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new 
milestones to report this week: This proposal to modify the Center’s existing CUP would 
expand the campus by constructing a new 7,424 square foot meditation chapel with seating 
for 200 persons, a 4,278 square foot multi-purpose building, a 3,929 square foot Sunday 
school classroom and would convert an existing office/residential building to a bookstore. 
Additional parking would be provided and some existing buildings on the site would be 
relocated or demolished. The CUP application was submitted on November 14, 2016. Staff 
reviewed the initial submittal and sent a letter to the applicant on December 14, 2016, 
indicating that the application was incomplete and specifying the additional information that 
was necessary to complete the application. 

 
Residential 

 
1. Oak Creek (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – This project has been placed on hold 

by the developer while the City completes construction of the Southwest Sewer Project so 
there is no change from the following update reported last week: This project is a 65-unit 
single family development located at the southeastern corner of Felicita Road and Hamilton 
Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. The LAFCO Board unanimously approved the 
annexation on October 5, 2015, and the annexation has been recorded. No grading or 
improvement plans have been submitted by the developer at this time.  

 
2. Amanda Estates (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West) – This project has been placed 

on hold by the developer while the City completes construction of the Southwest Sewer Project 
so there is no change from the following update reported last week: This project is a 22-unit 
single family development on Amanda Lane approved by the City Council in 2015. The 
LAFCO Board approved the reorganization (annexation) at their meeting on August 3, 2015, 



 

 9 

and the annexation has been recorded. No grading or improvement plans have been 
submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
3. Pradera (Developer: Moses Kim, Lennar Homes) – Project review and communications with 

the applicant are on-going but there are no new milestones to report this week: This project 
consists of a 70-unit single family development located at the northeastern corner of Ash 
Street and Lehner Avenue. The developer has obtained building permits for six phases 
involving 52 homes and those phases are under construction. Homebuyer interest in the 
product remains high and sales are progressing.  All five final maps in the project have now 
been recorded. Precise grading plans for all phases have been approved. Phases 7 and 8 for 
the construction of 11 additional homes were received on December 12, 2016. Improvement 
plans for the new 20” water line in Conway Street are now being reviewed by the Utilities 
Department. 

 
4. Lexington (Zenner) (Developer: Eric Johnston, KB Homes) – The project is a 40-unit, single-

family development at the northeastern corner of Lehner Avenue and Vista Avenue. A rough 
grading permit was issued for the project site on August 18, 2016 and grading is underway. 
The final map has been approved by City Council. Building plans for Phase 1 were submitted 
into plan check on December 20, 2016 and permits were issued before the end of the year.  
On January 24, 2017, the Planning Commission approved a variance request from KB 
Homes to reduce perimeter wall setbacks for five residential lots. The precise grading plan 
for the remainder of the project site was approved on March 14, 2017. KB Homes is 
coordinating with Engineering to complete the Vista Avenue street improvements during the 
two-week school spring break that starts on Saturday, April 8, 2017. The applicant has 
indicated that he intends to pull Phase 2 building permits this week. 

 
5. Stella Park Condominiums (Developer: Edward Kaen, ETP, LLC) – Project review and 

communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new milestones to report 
this week: This project is a 63-unit, three-story townhome Planned Development located at 
2516 S. Escondido Blvd. The project includes three separate recreation areas for residents. 
The City Council approved the project on April 27, 2016. A Substantial Conformance 
Tentative Map (TM) and proposed modification to the Precise Development Plan was filed by 
Lyon Homes on December 12, 2016. The Planning Commission approved a modification to 
the Precise Development Plan and the substantial conformance TM on February 14, 2017. 
Lyon Homes is coordinating demo fee credits with staff. A rough grading plan submitted on 
February 23, 2017 has been returned with comments and staff is awaiting a second submittal. 
 

6. Wohlford (Developer: Jack Henthorne) – This project is a 55-lot single family development 
located on Bear Valley Parkway east of Encino Drive. A Specific Alignment Plan for Bear 
Valley Parkway detailing the proposed roadway design is under review. An application for a 
Development Agreement has been submitted by the applicant. The Draft EIR has been 
posted on the City website and released for a 45-day public review period commencing on 
March 27 and ending on May 12, 2017. 

 



 

 10 

7. Latitude II (Developer: Peter Zak, Lyon/NCA) – This project is a 112-unit multi-family 
development, located at the northeastern corner of Centre City Parkway and Washington 
Avenue, and was approved by the City Council on August 19, 2015. A boundary adjustment 
for a property exchange with the adjacent motel owner has been approved and recorded. A 
grading permit has been issued and the applicant is coordinating installation of BMP’s with 
Engineering. Building plans are nearing approval pending approval of the final map and a 
sewer reimbursement agreement. 

 
8. Canyon Grove Estates Tract 932 (Developer: John Vance, Shea Homes) – This project is a 

179-lot single family residential development on the north side of Vista Avenue east of 
Conway Drive. The final architectural design and landscaping plans for the Precise Plan 
application were approved by the Planning Commission on June 14, 2016. Building permits 
for the construction of eight model homes have been issued and construction is underway. 
Phase 1 has also received permits. Permits for Phase 11 have been issued and it is 
expected that Phase 2 of the Estates product will be issued this week. Off-site construction of 
the traffic signal at Ash Street/Vista Avenue is expected to commence soon. 
 

9. Safari Highlands Ranch (SHR) (Developer: Jeb Hall, Concordia Homes) – Project review and 
communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new milestones to report 
this week: This project is a 550-unit single family development located east of the Rancho 
San Pasqual community and north of the San Diego Safari Park. The project involves 1,100 
acres including annexation and a Sphere of Influence update for a master planned 
community with parks, trails, recreation center, fire station and open space. Planning and 
Engineering extensions of staff have been funded by the applicant and retained to assist the 
City in processing the project. The City Council approved the consultant contract for 
preparing the EIR on March 23, 2016. The contract planner has been meeting with the 
consultant, Michael Baker International (MBI), and has started review of first draft sections 
of the EIR. While the EIR is generally on schedule, there have been some changes to the 
site plan, which will affect the EIR schedule. The changes include the elimination of the 
“water factory” for wastewater treatment, elimination of the public park, changes to the 
entry road which would now be private instead of public, and relocation of the fire station to 
the former public park site. These changes will require the applicant’s civil engineer to 
make a number of revisions to the tentative map, but are not anticipated to affect the 
proposed development envelope or the number of proposed lots. A revised tentative map 
depicting the site plan changes was submitted on October 17, 2016. Staff comments on the 
Fire Management Plan were sent to the applicant the week of March 13, 2017. 
 

10. High Pointe Tract 693-J (Developer: Russell Schaeffer, True Life Communities) – The 
applicant continues to actively market the property and there is no change from the following 
update reported last week: This project is a custom-home development with 39 estate lots 
accessed from Mesa Rock Road. Staff has prepared a bond and fee letter based on the 
proposed grading and landscape plans, and has sent it to the applicant. 

 



 

 11 

11. Del Prado (Developer: Kerry Garza, Touchstone Communities) – Communications with the 
applicant are on-going but there are no new milestones to report this week:  This project is a 
113-unit townhome-style Planned Development located at the southwestern corner of 
Brotherton Road and the Centre City Parkway frontage road. The project includes a 
recreational facility, pool, and open space areas.  Staff worked through various site design 
and utility issues with the applicant prior to scheduling the project for a public hearing. The 
City Council approved the project on May 11, 2016. No grading or improvement plans have 
been submitted by the developer at this time. 

 
12. 701 San Pasqual Valley Rd (Developer: Bob Stewart) – This project is a 19-unit single family 

development located at 701 San Pasqual Rd/1201 E. 5th Avenue (formerly Tract 898) on 7.2 
acres. The application is under review and a letter detailing additional comments and 
submittal requirements was forwarded to the applicant. Staff has met several times with the 
applicant to help work through project design and storm water issues. A Draft Mitigated 
Negative Declaration has been submitted and staff has provided comments to the applicant 
on the draft and technical studies. 

 
13. Veterans Village (Developer: Veterans Village of San Diego) – This project is a mixed-use 

development involving a 54-unit affordable multi-family residential apartment project for 
military veterans and their families. It includes on-site administration office, business center, 
club house and other support spaces for the residents; and a small commercial component to 
support training opportunities offered at the facility at 1556 S. Escondido Boulevard. The 
grading plans and landscaping plans have been approved. Demolition has been completed 
and grading is underway. It is expected the building permit will be issued this week. 

14. Escondido Gateway (Developer: Greg Waite, Integral Communities) – This project is a 
mixed-use development involving 126 residential units within three, 4-5 story buildings with 
indoor and outdoor recreational areas and an opportunity for a small (1,000 sq. ft.) 
commercial/flex space on 2.6 acres (48 dwelling units/acre) located at 700 W. Grand Avenue 
(former Police Station) across the street from the Escondido Transit Center. Plans were 
submitted for the project involving a Specific Plan Amendment, Tentative Map, Planned 
Development and Development Agreement. The City Council approved the project on 
October 12, 2016. The Development Agreement has been recorded.  Building plans were 
submitted into plan check the week of December 11, 2016, and there have been two rounds 
of comments provided by staff. Grading plans were resubmitted (3rd review) on March 20, 
2017. Planning is awaiting resubmittal of revised CC&Rs and the parking management plan. 
The City’s former tenant has vacated the old building and the applicant is moving swiftly 
towards issuance of a demo permit with bidding underway for asbestos and lead-based paint 
removal. 



 

 12 

15. The Villages at Escondido Country Club (Developer: Jason Han, New Urban West, Inc.) – 
Project review and communications with the applicant are on-going but there are no new 
milestones to report this week: The project would redevelop the former 109.3-acre Escondido 
Country Club golf course property with a new residential development consisting of 392 
dwelling units including single-family detached and attached duplex units. The proposed 
project density is 3.6 dwelling units per acre with a minimum residential lot size of 2,555 
square feet. The development would include 48 acres of open space including a landscaped 
greenbelt with a four-mile trail system linking park features. Other proposed amenities 
include a new clubhouse building, swimming pool, gym, tennis/pickle ball court, restaurant 
and bar and banquet facilities. The proposed General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan, 
Vesting Tentative Map and Zone Change applications and plans were submitted to the 
Planning Division on October 31, 2016. The developer has retained Dudek to prepare the 
Draft EIR for the project. The developer has provided funding for a contract planner working 
under the direction of the Planning Division to assist the City in processing the project. A kick-
off meeting was held on November 15, 2016, to commence project-related discussions 
between Planning staff and their contract planner, the applicant and the EIR consultant. A 
letter indicating the project application is incomplete was sent to the applicant on November 
30, 2016. City staff met with the applicant on December 22, 2016 to review the comment 
letter. A Notice of Preparation (NOP) for the EIR was issued on January 25, 2017 for a 30-
day review period ending on February 24, 2017. The NOP includes notification of a public 
scoping meeting that was held on February 13, 2017. A project resubmittal in response to the 
City’s November 30, 2016 letter was received on March 16, 2017. The complete resubmittal 
will include additional information for the proposed specific alignment plan for Country Club 
Lane. Planning staff has developed a new section on the City’s website for ECC project-
related documents and plans.  The information can be accessed at the following link: ECC - 
City of Escondido 

16. Ivy/Valley Parkway Mixed-Use Development (Developer: Abad Rahan Pars Inc./ Norm 
Wieme, Architect – Project review and communications with the applicant are on-going but 
there are no new milestones to report this week: This project at 113 N. Ivy consists of a plot 
plan application to construct a four-story building with 20 two-bedroom apartment units and 
approximately 3,000 square feet of commercial space on a vacant 0.5-acre parcel located at 
113 N. Ivy Street. The conditional letter of approval for the plot plan was approved and 
issued on September 19, 2016. The applicant has indicated that grading and building plans 
are expected to be submitted into plan check soon. Utilities staff is currently working on a 
reimbursement agreement for new water infrastructure that will be installed on the project in 
the adjoining alley. 

 



 

 13 

Building Division: 

 
1. The Building Division issued 63 permits for a total valuation of $589,778. Issued permits 

included a new Popeye’s restaurant located at 1541 East Valley Parkway.  
 
2. Twenty-three photovoltaic permits were issued for the week. The Building Division has 

issued 217 solar permits this year compared to 322 issued for the same time last year.  
 
3. Counter technicians assisted, on average, 32 customers per day with 26 customers on 

Friday. 
 
4. Building inspections averaged 39 inspections per day with 24 inspections on Friday. 
 
5. The total building valuation for all issued permits issued this year through the 24th of March 

is $13,707,702 compared with $8,778,071 for the same time last year. Building has 
processed 717 projects to date compared with 902 projects for the same time period in 
2016.  

 
6. Projects nearing permit issuance are: 
 

a. Latitude 2, a 112-unit apartment complex consisting of six, three-story buildings at 610-
660 Centre City Pkwy. 

b. Veterans Village, at 1540 S. Escondido Blvd., a 40,000 square foot, three-story 
apartment building providing affordable housing for veterans and their families. 

c. Westminster Seminary student housing, 1725 Bear Valley Parkway, consisting of ten 

buildings with 72 residential units for students and their families. 

 
7. The construction of the City Plaza three-story mixed use building at 300 S. Escondido Blvd. 

has completed the podium slab and fourth floor wall framing is progressing. 
 
8. Roof framing is proceeding at The Meadowbrook three-story apartment building with 

underground garage at 2081 Garden Valley Glen.  
 
9. Escondido Disposal is proceeding with the tenant improvement for the existing building and 

has completed the drywall. Roof framing on their new transfer building also has been 
completed. 

 
10. Demolition is almost complete but progressing slowly at the former bank building at 444 S. 

Escondido Blvd. due to demolished materials being recycled and salvaged for reuse. 
 

11. The Talk of the Town carwash building at 400 Brotherton Road will be approved for 
occupancy soon. The plans for the interior of the restaurant building have been submitted 
and are under review. 



 

 14 

12. The model homes at Canyon Grove (Shea Homes) are nearing completion. 
 

13. The Church of the Resurrection at 14445 Conway is ready for foundation inspection. 
 

14. KB Homes is requesting foundation inspection for the first seven homes in their Lexington 
development on Vista Avenue/Ash Street. 

 
Code Enforcement: 
 
1. As of March 27, the total number of open code enforcement cases is 516. During the prior 

week, 100 new cases were opened, and 60 cases were closed, with a backlog of an 
additional 44 cases not yet opened for assignment and investigation.  
 

2. A total of 106 illegal signs were confiscated during the weekend. 
 

3. Last week, the Business License Division issued 27 new licenses and received 36 new 
applications, in addition to 192 renewals. Twenty businesses closed and/or closed out their 
business licenses. 

 
ENGINEERING 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
2015/2016 Street Rehabilitation and Maintenance Project 

The contractor began to work on Punch List items on Wednesday of this week. The installation 
of traffic signs and legends is ongoing throughout the project.  
 
Encino Street Emergency Storm Drain Repair 

Competitive bids have been received and are under review. The apparent low bidder will be 
contacted later this week to finalize the Public Service Agreement. 
 
Neighborhood Parking District 

The project is moving forward with the manufacturing of signs to be placed along the project 
streets. The installation date is tentatively set for April 10, 2017. 
 
PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 
Pradera - Lennar Communities 
The developer is working on a schedule for the completion of new striping and signage along 
the area streets. Installation of a missing 2” water service for the project landscape irrigation is 
set to be installed this Thursday. 
 



 

 15 

Lexington Model Homes - KB Homes 

The preconstruction meeting was held on Tuesday of this week to plan for the closure of Vista 
Avenue between Ash Street and Lehner Avenue during Spring Break next month. A detour 
route as well as door hangers and electronic message boards will be in place to assist 
residences. House pads for the first 8 homes were poured this week.     
 
Escondido Boulevard at 3rd Avenue 

No changes from the following reported last week: The contractor is using a crane to deliver 
materials to the third floor, and lane closures along 3rd Avenue will be a regular occurrence to 
allow for the lifting of construction materials to the newly completed floor.   
 
Tract 932 - Canyon Grove Shea Homes Community 
No changes from the following reported last week: The traffic signal for El Norte Parkway at 
Vista Verde is continuing with the pot holing of utilities, onsite construction of the water quality 
basin as well as the construction of a new water main pipe is continuing this week. 
 
Quantum Academy at Falconer Road 

Escondido Elementary School District is continuing with the completion of the new water main 
to the existing facility.  
 
Latitude II Condominiums by a Lyon Homes Partnership: Washington Avenue at Centre 
City Parkway 
Construction activity has started on the 12” sewer main replacement on site. The contractor is 
required to install by-pass pumps to allow for the replacement 12” clay sewer main.       
 
Westminster Theological Seminary Graduate Student Housing: Boyle Avenue at Bear 
Valley Parkway 

The contractor is continuing with the installation of dry utility conduits within the project limits. 
 
Talk of the Town 
The project is nearing completion; the contractor is working on the punch list. Staff anticipates 
the release of the project for occupancy by Friday of this week. 
 
Veterans Village 
The project submitted traffic control plans and an Encroachment permit for review.  The 
permits are for the construction of the offsite improvement along Escondido Boulevard as well 
as 15th Avenue. 
 
Tract 877 – Bernardo Ave. by Ambient Communities 

No changes from the following reported last week: This is a 13 lot single family residential 
project located at the cul-de-sac end of Bernardo Ave.  The construction of the 16’ high sound 
wall along the freeway is ongoing this week. The developer has not notified the City when the 
grading operations will resume. 
 



 

 16 

Palomar Medical Center 

The project engineer has resolved the sewer main conflict and construction has resumed. The 
replacement of the Emergency Room Access driveway which has been impacted during 
construction should begin to be replaced this week. All emergency vehicles will be permitted to 
use the driveway by Thursday of next week. 
 
Rincon Water/Ash Street By-Pas project 

A preconstruction meeting was held on Wednesday of this week to discuss the project which is 
slated to begin during Spring Break next month. The construction zone is along Ash Street 
between Vista Avenue and Hubbard Avenue.  
 
Rincon Water/Harmony Grove Water Main Upgrade 
The contractor is continuing with the construction of a new recycled water main along Harmony 
Grove Road at Kauana Loa Drive. The project is encountering rock which is limiting installation 
to 20’ a day. There is a daytime closure of the roadway and traffic control which includes 
detour route signs and electronic message boards in place to assist residences. 
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 
 
Neighborhood Streetlight Project 
This project will add new streetlights to meet current lighting standards and retrofit existing 
streetlights with LED fixtures at five established communities throughout the City.  Pending 
City Attorney approval of updated Federal specifications, project plans and specifications will 
be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to advertising for bids.  Staff 
anticipates advertising for bids in April 2017.  
 
Jim Stone Pool 

This project will renovate both existing pools and update pool equipment required to meet 
current County Health standards. Connection of the mechanical building to the facility sewer 
lateral is currently underway. Demolition of the existing mechanical building has been pushed 
back a week to start on April 3, 2017, with reconstruction to be completed by the end of May 
2017. Construction to re-plaster the pools is anticipated to begin in early to mid-April and be 
completed by early June 2017. The contractor is continuing with the installation of the new 6” 
sewer lateral this week, the connection to the main sewer is set for Wednesday of this week.    
 
POLICE 
 
INCIDENTS: 

 

 On 03/21/17 at 08:30 hours, Detectives from the Family Protection Unit arrested Spicer 
Conant, a 46-year-old San Marcos resident, for attempting to kidnap 9 females in 
Escondido over a 10-month period (2 in May 2016 and 7 in March 2017).  A search 
warrant was served at his residence on 03/22/17. 



 

 17 

 On 3/22/17 at 02:17 hours, an ICEOPLEX employee working in the back of the 
business heard a loud banging sound coming from the main lobby/entrance.  The 
reporting party saw two males hitting the ATM in the front lobby with hammers, and their 
faces were covered with towels. The suspects forced entry into the business and left 
with the bottom (cash) portion of the ATM. The suspects possibly fled in a green truck 
with a camper shell.  

 On 03/23/17 at 09:11 hours, an officer received a LoJack hit in the area of Centre City 
Parkway and Highway 78.  The vehicle was located parked at the Transit Center with no 
occupants. Detectives responded and observed the vehicle.  A short time later a male 
suspect was seen entering the vehicle and drove through the parking lot. Officers 
converged on the vehicle before it could exit the lot and took the driver into custody 
without incident for Auto Theft. 

 On 03/25/17 at 20:50 hours, officers responded to a radio call of an attempted 
kidnapping.  The 18-year-old victim stated she was walking south on the sidewalk of N. 
Escondido Blvd from El Norte Pkwy. The victim noticed an older white four door Acura 
approach from behind. The front seat passenger (suspect) began talking to her. He was 
described as a Hispanic male adult in his 30’s, heavy set, wearing a white long sleeve 
shirt and dark shorts. The vehicle stopped and the suspect exited the vehicle, grabbed 
the victim on her right forearm, and attempted to pull her into the car. The victim 
punched the suspect on the right side of the face with her keys and was able to run 
away.  The victim identified a partial plate of AD2. She was not injured and can identify 
the suspect. 
 

### 


	Consent Calendar 
	Item #3
	Item #4
	Item #5
	Item #6
	Item #7
	Item #8
	Item #9
	Item #10
	Current Business
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Item #13
	Future Agenda
	Item #14
	City Manager's Update/Briefing
	City Manager's Update



